
 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 15, 2021 
6:00 pm 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

 
This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled February 15, 
2021. 

 
Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Ron Cummings, Larry McLaughlin, 
Tray Taylor, Alex Kehayes and Ellis Lawrence. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith, County Attorney 
Lauren Arizaga-Womble and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings. 
 
Regular Meeting 
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance, he then 
offered a moment of silence for the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all 
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak and none was submitted. 
 
Consent Agenda 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. 
If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of Minutes 
Attached are the minutes of the January 19, 2021 and February 1, 2021 meetings for 
the Board’s review and consideration.  
 

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Preliminary Regionalization Feasibility Study 
Greg Churchill, the County’s engineer with Rivers and Associates provided the Board with the 
preliminary feasibility study report for regional water supply and treatment facilities for Chowan 
County in cooperation with the Town of Edenton and Perquimans County. A copy of the report 
and PowerPoint is in the meeting file labeled February 15, 2021.  Mr. Churchill stated the study 
was paid for with a grant in the amount of $50,000 from the NC Division of Water Infrastructure 
and additional assistance on the study was provided by Groundwater Management. Mr. Churchill 
stated the purpose of the study was to provide a preliminary evaluation and direction relative to 
the feasibility of developing a long-range regional water supply plan that is capable of addressing 



future potable water needs of Chowan County, the Town of Edenton and the westernmost 
portion of Perquimans County to the year 2040 and beyond.  Part of the study included 
information on the current water infrastructure in the three areas.  He noted the regional 
challenges such as future availability of sufficient raw water of the quality and capacity to 
support the demand, treatment requirements to meet primary and secondary standards through 
out the water systems, treatment and disposal of residual waste streams, environmental concerns 
relative to implementation, permitting issues relative to implementation and affordability to 
implement and operate a substantial supply and treatment process.  He noted the future water 
demand for the three jurisdictions stating the average daily demand is 2.122 and the maximum 
daily demand is 3.714 in 2040. He stated the maximum demand is important in planning for 
water systems. He noted the approach reviewed the potential raw water supplies such as the 
Yorktown and Castle Hayne Aquifers located at Valhalla and the Brackish Castle Hayne and 
Upper Cape Fear Aquifers located near the Edenton Airport.  He discussed potential treatment 
processes like conventional pressure filtration and softening, nanofiltration and reverse osmosis. 
He stated that the raw water wells transmission requirements, requirements for 
treatment/transmission/disposal of brackish water and finished water transmission requirements.  
 
Mr. Churchill discussed alternatives that were considered: 

- A 4.0/4.5 MGD regional filter/softener water treatment plant located at the Valhalla 
site 

o Requires 7 new wells using the Yorktown and Castle Hayne Aquifers 
o Extension of the raw water transmission main 
o Extension of the finished transmission mains 
o Backwash treatment including the effluent diffuser in the Chowan River at 

Harris Landing 
o Additional options of chloramines residual disinfection and Anionic Resin 

vessels for organics removal. 
o He provided mapping which detailed this alternative. 
o Cost Estimate - $45.3 Million (Filter/Softener water treatment plant with 

chloramines disinfection $45.8 million) (Filter Softener water treatment plan 
with organics removal $48.5 million) 
 

- A 4.0 MGD/5.0 MGD regional nanofiltration water treatment plant with iron pre-
treatment located at the existing Valhalla water treatment plant. 

o Requires 8 new wells 
o Extension of the raw water transmission main 
o Extension of the finished transmission mains 
o Extension of the concentrate discharge force main connected to a subaqueous 

multi-port diffuser in the Chowan River at Harris Landing. 
o He provided mapping which detailed this alternative. 
o Cost estimate $60.5 million 

 
- A 4.0/5.0 MGD Regional Reverse Osmosis water treatment plant located in the 

Yeopim/Haughton/Poplar Neck Road area 
o Requires a brackish water wellfield consisting of 18 blending wells tapped int 

the lower Castle Hayne and Upper Cape Fear River Aquifers 
o Extension of the raw water transmission main 
o Extension of the finished transmission mains 



o Extension of the concentrate discharge force main connected to a subaqueous 
multiport diffuser located upstream of the Albemarle Sound Hwy 37 Bridge. 

o Cost estimate $51.7 million 
 
He noted other items for consideration include organizational structure options that include 
interlocal agreements and other organizational options. He stated that the capital funding options 
were NCDEQ funding, USDA funding, Commercial financing revenue bonds or general 
obligations bonds.  He noted a decision matrix was used to score various parameters for each 
alternative to form a basis for recommendation. He stated the Reverse Osmosis water treatment 
plant received the highest most favorable score. He noted that additional studies are necessary 
including such as pilot plant treatability studies, CORMIX dilution modeling studies.  Each 
partnering entity will need to determine whether a regional solution is perceived as feasible as s 
short-term or long term solution. He concluded that should Chowan, the Town of Edenton and 
Perquimans County choose to move forward with a regional water supply, and the associated 
treatment system, the recommended alternative is Reverse Osmosis at a preliminary estimated 
project cost of $51.7 million. 
 
During the presentation Board members asked questions about the study and conclusions.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence discussed water treatment. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked about aquifer dependability. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that the recommendations considers long term reliability.  
 
Chair Kirby stated that he has received complaints about dissolved silica in the water. He asked 
which would remove this. 
 
Mr. Churchill sated that either of the membrane processes would do that. He stated that the filter 
softener does not address dissolved silica. 
 
Chair Kirby stated you cannot take water that has been treated with R/O and put it in the system. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated it requires chemical treatment to adjust. 
 
Chair Kirby asked about the saltwater. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated it depends on the location some are fresh and some are salt. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked about removal of carcinogens. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated both processes will remove the organic precursors from the water. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked about health studies of areas in the County. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that the drinking water in Chowan meets primary and secondary standards. 
 
Chair Kirby asked about a timeline if the three agencies come together and agree to the project. 



 
Mr. Churchill stated that if the entity was already in place and a decision was made to study, 
design and build, that could take 5 plus years. He stated additional time is needed to form the 
entity. He stated the construction portion is about two years but the studying, seeking funding 
and getting design approval will take at least 5 years.  He noted that the NPDES permit took 16 
months. 
 
Mr. Howard noted it took Pasquotank 16 years, he asked if Chowan would take less time. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated he could not guarantee 5 years. He stated that is not unreasonable however 
you have to stay on top of the studies and processes. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if there was just a system for Chowan County only that did not 
include Perquimans County. He asked if it will lower the cost. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated it will reduce the cost some he was not sure of the exact amount. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked why Perquimans was considered. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated he believes Perquimans expressed interest because their supply is limited 
and they were able to tie into the Pasquotank system.  
 
Chair Kirby asked if the reverse osmosis includes getting water to the southern part of Chowan 
County. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that was correct. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the recharge rate for pulling that many gallons a day. He 
stated is there a limit for growth and stress on the system. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that they do not consider how big they can get, he stated that they want to 
make sure that cones of depression are not created to draw the water table down.  He stated that 
the design considers concerns with over taxing the aquifers. 

 
Harris Landing Design 
Mr. Howard stated that currently DWQ has allowed the County to conduct the feasibility study 
however a deadline remains in place for this summer to complete the initial outfall design for 
Harris Landing.  He stated that the Board will need to consider approval of resuming design of 
Harris Landing Effluent project. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that a permit must be submitted by August. He stated a lot of the design 
work has been done but not the waste discharge. He stated the wetlands need to be surveyed and 
the route needs to be designed with easements being obtained.  
 
Chair Kirby expressed his concern with moving forward with a $5 million design for pipe that 
could be abandoned in 5-6 years if the County chooses to go with the reverse osmosis regional 
plan. He stated his concern is what is in the best interest for the taxpayers.  
 



Mr. Howard stated the issue is the deadline has not been changed. He stated that a joint meeting 
between Chowan, the Town of Edenton and Perquimans is needed.  He stated the County may be 
able to ask the State for an additional 6 months. He stated he is not aware of any funding or grant 
monies to fund the regional plant option.  
 
Chair Kirby stated his concern with the State mandating the County spend monies to address the 
discharge if the County is gong to do another project. He stated he feels this is something that 
staff should take to the State.; 
 
Mr. Howard stated the state was provided a copy of the feasibility study and there have been no 
comments. He stated this matter could be further discussed at the retreat and he could contact the 
Washington NC regional office of DEQ to discuss this concern. 
 
Mr. Churchill stated that this has not been discussed with DEQ. He stated the Board will need to 
consider its current user rates and the debt as well. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin noted that many constituents in the Harris Landing area have 
expressed concerns over the discharge of the waste water into the river. 
 
Mr. Howard stated the engineers have the science to share with the constituents about their 
concerns.  
 
Mr. Churchill stated the environmental concerns have been addressed. 
 
Commissioner Evans stated that residents in that area have many concerns about the discharge 
and the current algae situation in the river.  
 
Chair Kirby stated the algae is a State and Federal issue not the County’s.  
 
The Board by consensus asked the Manager to discuss their desire to look further into the 
feasibility study and the reverse osmosis option and report the comments from the State back to 
the Board. 

 
Public Hearings 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - Animal Control Ordinance Amendment 
Chair Kirby noted that the Board will hold a Public Hearing for amendment and update to the 
Chowan County Animal Control Ordinance. 
 
County Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble provided the Board with information on the public 
hearing procedure for the ordinance adoption. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to go into public hearing. 
 
Animal Control Officer Louann Fisher stated the ordinance needs updating as the current 
ordinance has not been updated in 10 years to reflect the changes in the laws. 
 



Attorney Arizaga-Womble noted the Board has been provided with a copy of the current animal 
control ordinance as well as the draft copy. She stated that the highlighted portions of the text are 
the proposed language. She stated she has worked with Officer Fisher to review the language. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked for clarification on Section 2r. with regards to the nuisance of 
barking dogs. 
 
Ms. Fisher stated that barking dogs are considered a nuisance however, she receives many calls 
about barking dogs, and she cannot act on the allegations, often because when she responds the 
dog is not barking. She then explained how the complainant is asked to document their 
experience and report it to her for review to determine if there is a nuisance. 

Chair Kirby asked for clarification on the definition of an animal. He asked if a cow or a horse 
are considered domestic animals. 

Officer Fisher stated that cows and horses fall under different laws than cats, dogs or ferret. She 
added that a cow falls under the laws of the Department of Agriculture. 

Chair Kirby stated his concern that chickens, cows and horses are not included in the ordinance. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated that the ordinance is to address nuisances and it is difficult to 
find an example of when a horse would become a nuisance.  She stated that complaints about 
these animals are usually in regards to maltreatment. She stated that is criminal and not a 
nuisance. She noted that Chapter 14 of the ordinance addresses that she investigates these types 
of complaints and the ordinance does not prevent her from investigating or taking out charges. 

Officer Fisher stated that the laws address animal cruelty investigations and charges. 

Mr. Howard stated that the local ordinance addresses nuisances, leash laws and tethering laws. 

Chair Kirby asked if a pot bellied pig is considered an agricultural animal. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated that if the Board would like she can go back with Officer 
Fisher and look at other ordinances to see if and how these types of animals are addressed. 

Chair Kirby stated that a previous incident someone called to complain about a pot bellied pig 
and were told this was livestock and were told the County did not address these types of animals. 
He stated he was glad the ordinance was being updated however he has concerns with people in 
the future claiming the slaughter of livestock is animal cruelty. 

Officer Fisher stated that staff may need to insert language about how to address other animals 
that are not cats/dogs/ferrets and horses. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated she would look into definitions for livestock and will analyze 
the County’s ability to press charges with regards to livestock. She stated that she needs to 
reassess other animals to see what the County is able to address. 

Commissioner Kehayes asked about dangerous dogs’ complaints and the Animal Control Board. 

Officer Fisher stated that a committee will need to be added. 

 



Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated that the Board needs to be in place. She stated a committee will 
need to be established with membership. She stated that the organization of the Board will be 
included in the ordinance. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated she will reassess the draft ordinance and look at the definition 
of domestic animals that are pets. She stated that clarification is needed for animals that are 
considered pets and also considered livestock. 

Commissioner Evans stated that the language of livestock should be clarified and domestic 
animals. 

Board members provided input for defining the animals. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated she would review the guidance from the state for these 
definitions. 

Ms. Stallings noted that procedurally it should be noted that a public hearing was held and no 
public comment was received. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble noted that the hearing was advertised on the rewrite and she did not 
believe a second reading of the ordinance is required. 

Commissioner Lawrence questioned the need for the additional definitions for potbellied pig he 
stated that not all animals will be covered in the ordinance. 

Commissioner Cummings moved to close the public hearing. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Attorney Arizaga Womble stated that no additional motion is needed, this will come back at a 
later meeting. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Planning Items 
1) Amendment to the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance- 8.112 Temporary Placement of 
Recreational Vehicles Not Located in a Private Campground/ RV Park. 

Commissioner Lawrence moved to go into public hearing for this amendment. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Board Clerk Susanne Stallings noted that no public comment was received and nobody signed up 
to speak.  

Planner Brandon Shoaf then provided the staff report: 

Requested Action: Review a text amendment for the placement of campers/ RV’s for 
temporary residential uses while a primary residence is being 
constructed, 8.112- TEMPORARY PLACEMENT OF 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLES NOT LOCATED IN A PRIVATE 
CAMPGROUND/ RV PARK 

 
ANALYSIS 
 



A few months ago, I was asked by the County Manager to look into a text amendment that would 
allow for the temporary placement of an RV, or camper, while a primary residence is being built.  
 
We have this type of question come up often, usually someone that is acting as their own General 
Contractor, wanting to set up a camper to live in while they work to build the house, that they 
will live in as a primary residence. The conversations usually sound a lot like what I’ve 
proposed, in that, they would be willing to be allowed to set up a camper for a designated period 
of time and then remove it, or store it, when that time was up. After speaking with the building 
inspectors, they suggested having the ability for a builder/ owner to ask for an extension, 
allowing for more time to keep the camper set up for living. The reasoning is that even though 
most residential construction projects can, and do, take less than a year, there are some that go 
longer and having some room to work with the applicant would be good.  
 
Proposed Language (attached) 
 
The amendment itself is attached to this staff report and if approved will be inserted in the Table 
of Permitted Uses, Table 5-1, between Temporary Emergency, Construction, and Repair 
Residence and Temporary Shelter. It would have a D classification for all of the Zoning Districts, 
which is a use permitted with staff review and compliance with development standards. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes expressed his concern over the language in Section D.  He stated that he 
is concerned if someone owns an RV and their family member comes to visit, that they are not 
able to stay in their RV. He stated that he would recommend the language be amended to reflect 
only allowing one occupied RV. 
 
Board members discussed this and agreed to the amendment. 
 
Mr. Howard noted this addresses RV during construction. 
 
Commissioner Cummings stated that section B 1,2 and 3 are specific to construction. 
 
Commissioner Evans stated that the heading of the text is not specific to address construction 
purpose. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that the purpose is to address this in certain zoning areas. 
 
Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated the spirit of the ordinance is to grant temporary relief for 
emergencies and disasters. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that there are sections that address emergencies, he stated this text makes this 
enforceable. 
 
Board members discussed proposed deletions to the draft text. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that he did not want to give the impression that the County will allow multiple 
campers on a site 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked about deleting all of section B. 



 
The Board reached a consensus to amend the title of the ordinance to add “For construction 
purposes or reconstruction”.  Additionally, it was recommended to delete Section B 2 and B 3.  
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of the public hearing. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Commissioner Cummings moved that This amendment will be consistent with the 2018 Land Use 
Plan or any other plan officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners because it expands 
property owners’ rights and protections under the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance.  Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to adopt the ordinance as amended this evening to amend the title 
and delete proposed sections B2 and B3. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor the motion passed 
unanimously (7-0).  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
2) Amendment to the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance- Article 15.04- Definition of 
Manufactured Home Park, Single Ownership, Bedroom, Building, Dwelling, Dwelling Unit, and 
Sleeping Unit 
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to go into public hearing. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Board Clerk Susanne Stallings noted that no public comment was received and nobody signed up 
to speak.  

STAFF REPORT 
 
To:    Chowan County Commissioners and Manager 
Date:    February 9, 2021 
Case:    TA-20-06 and TA-20-08 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION  
  
Requested Action: Review a text amendment to Article 15- Definitions and Word 

Interpretations- Manufactured Home Park, Single Ownership, 
Bedroom, Building, Dwelling, Dwelling Unit, Sleeping Unit 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
These proposed definitions amendments came out of two separate Planning Board meetings.  
One in September and one in October, this is just the first chance we’ve had to hold a public 
hearing, that did not conflict with an organizational meeting or holiday.  
   
One group of definitions- Bedroom, Building, Dwelling, Dwelling Unit, and Sleeping Unit- were  



proposed to help further align our Ordinance with NCGS 160D legislation. These definitions  
were taken from the NC Building Code Definitions section, on the advice of the UNC School 
of Government.  
 
The other- Manufactured Home Park and Single Ownership- are proposed to you to help make  
clearer where and how manufactured homes and manufactured home parks may be sited 
in the county.  
 
In discussion with the Manager and County Attorney, we wanted the definition to be clearer than 
it is now. The definition below, in proposed language, I believe does that. The current definition 
of a manufactured home park is: 

Any site, tract or adjoining real property in single ownership on which more than one 
mobile home is located and/or occupied, unless one additional mobile home, if approved 
by the Health Department, is residence for immediate family member, or on which facilities 
are provided for whether or not a charge is made for the use of the mobile home or the use 
of the site. 

 
In crafting a better definition, it became obvious a definition of single ownership would be 
necessary as well and you will see that in the proposed language section.  
 
 
Proposed Language 
 
Bedroom- a fully enclosed interior room as shown on the building plan for the structure having, 
as a minimum, a doorway, window and closet. 
 
Building- any structure used for the intended purpose of supporting or sheltering any use or 
occupancy.  
 
Dwelling- a building that contains one or two dwelling units used, intended or designed to be used, 
rented, leased, let or hired out to be occupied for living purposes.  
 
Dwelling Unit- a single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for one or more 
persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation.  
 
Sleeping Unit- a room or space which people sleep, which can also include permanent provisions 
for living, eating, and either sanitation or kitchen facilities, but not both. Such rooms and spaces 
that are also part of a dwelling unit are not sleeping units.  
 
Manufactured Home Park- any site, consisting of contiguous or adjoining real property in single 
ownership, on which more than one mobile home is located. Except, one additional mobile home, 
meeting all other standards of the Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations and with approval 
from the Albemarle Regional Health Services, is a residence for an immediate family member. 
 
Single ownership- ownership by an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability 
company, trust, holding company or other business entity, or subdivision thereof. 



 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Board unanimously voted to recommend that the first 5 definitions above be 
adopted, but did not recommend the last two. The Board felt they may be too restrictive. Staff 
recommends that the Commissioners adopt the amendments to the definitions.  
Commissioner Kehayes stated he recalled previously discussing this amendment.  

Mr. Shoaf stated it had to come back to the board for a public hearing. 

Commissioner Kehayes asked what was the issue with single ownership. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated that when you put single ownership you have to clarify the 
intent of the definition. She stated that establishment of a partnership or LLC could get around 
single ownership, and the proposed definition notes that if a mobile home is on a parcel and you 
own the adjoining parcel and rent it out, you have to come to the Board of Commissioners to 
have more than one mobile homes on the parcel you own because the ordinance has standards 
with regards to the establishment of a mobile home park business.  She stated that if someone 
owns five lots, zoned A-1 and they renting out the five parcels, not owned by an individual. She 
stated this ordinance does not prevent ownership of multiple homes or lots and renting them, 
however if a person owns multiple parcels, they have to get approval and meeting the standards 
of a mobile home park. 

Commissioner Taylor asked if Lynnhaven mobile home park meets the standards of the 
ordinance. 

Mr. Shoaf stated that Lynnhaven as it is meets the standards of the ordinance, he stated that more 
common space may be needed however it does meet the standards. 

Commissioner Cummings asked if this text requires a rezoning. 

Attorney Arizaga-Womble stated that it does not always require a rezoning. 

Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Commissioner Kehayes moved that this amendment will be consistent with the 2018 Land Use 
Plan or any other plan officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners because it makes the 
intent of the Chowan County Zoning Ordinance more clear, concise, and better aligned with the 
NCGS 160D legislation.   Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-
0). 

Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the text amendment as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 

Chair Kirby called for a five minute recess. After five minutes he called the meeting back to 
order. 



 

 Ag Building Change Order 
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the Board with a change order in the amount of 
$3,451.00 for the dormer relocation/HVAC work at the Ag Building. He noted that about $7,000 
of the $40,000 contingency has been used so far. 

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the change order as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Appointments 
The following Boards have had advertised vacancies. It is recommended the Board review the 
attached applications and consider appointment: 

 
Tourism Development Authority (TDA Board) 
Seat 8 Promotion. The applicant must be an individual currently active in the promotion of travel 
and tourism in the county. 

 
Additionally, it is recommended that Katrina Barnes (Seat 1), Susan Martin Cyr (Seat 3), 
Benjamin Speller (Seat 4) and Theresa Thesier (seat 5) be reappointed. Their terms will expire 
January 1, 2024. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to appoint Bob Hopkins to seat 8. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously. (7-0). 
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to reappoint Katrina Barnes (Seat 1), Susan Martin Cyr (Seat 3), 
Benjamin Speller (Seat 4) and Theresa Thesier (seat 5).  Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the 
motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
Chowan County ABC Board 
Andy Hare is currently serving in this seat, however his term expired back on June 30, 2020. It 
was an oversight which we found over a month ago. Mr. Hare has indicated his desire to rotate 
off the ABC Board upon the naming of his replacement. An application for consideration is 
attached, it is recommended this appointment be retroactive and expire on June 30, 2023 to allow 
the three members terms to rotate annually. 
 
Board members asked for clarification about ABC Board pay. Ms. Stallings stated she would get 
this information and email it to the full Board. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked if there is a conflict with a Town Councilman serving on this 
Board. 
 
Mr. Howard stated he was not aware of any conflict. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to appoint Craig Miller to the ABC Board. Chair Kirby asked for 
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

 



Chowan County Planning Board – Two Vacancies one in Area A and one in Area D 
Chair Kirby noted that these vacancies have been advertised for over a year. Various applications 
have been received however the applicants have not been residents of the areas in which the 
vacancies are listed.  Applications have been received from residents who now reside in those 
areas and are attached for the Board’s consideration.  
Area A 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to appoint Matthew Floyd to Area A. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Area D 
Chair Kirby noted that there is one vacancy for this area and four applications to consider. He 
discussed the procedure as recommended by the Clerk and the County Attorney for voting to the 
full Board noting that for each nomination and vote the Board can only vote one time.  
Commissioner Taylor asked if the Board interviews the candidates. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that the procedure can be handled that way typically the Board does not 
interview. He then opened the floor for nominations. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin nominated Clara King. 
 
Commissioner Evans nominated Brian Ward. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes nominated Kim Ringeisen. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that each Board member should only vote once in the first round. The person 
with the least number of votes will be eliminated and the Board will vote again for the next top 
two candidates. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor of the nomination of: 
 
Kim Ringeisen.  (2 votes in favor Kehayes and Lawrence) 
 
Brian Ward (2 votes in favor Evans and Taylor) 
 
Clara King (3 votes Kirby, Cummings and McLaughlin). 
 
Chair Kirby noted that the Board would need to break the tie between Kim Ringeisen and Brian 
Ward. 
 
Kim Ringeisen.  (3 votes in favor Cummings, Kehayes and Lawrence) 
 
Brian Ward (4 votes in favor Kirby, McLaughlin Evans and Taylor) 
 
Chair Kirby noted that Kim Ringeisen was eliminated. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that the Board would vote on the final two candidates and to only vote one 
time.  

 



Clara King (3 votes Kirby, Cummings and McLaughlin). 
 
Brian Ward (4 votes in favor Evans, Lawrence, Kehayes and Taylor) 
 
Chair Kirby noted that Brian Ward will be the appointee for Area D. 
 
EMS Survey Update 
EMS Director Colin Ryan provided the Board with an update on the initial survey results that 
EMS sent out several months ago. Board members will note this survey was a recommendation 
from the EMS peer review and assessment that was conducted in partnership with the North 
Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) in 2020. He stated that over 300 
surveys were mailed out. He stated that 15 were returned for bad addresses. He stated that 9 
surveys were completed and returned. He stated that there were calls about the survey. HE noted 
that 30 surveys will be mailed each month. 
 
Mr. Howard stated that they did not expect a huge response but were surprised the response was 
so low.  He stated the survey monkey subscription is good for one year.  

 
Soil and Water Conservation Department Annual Report 
Soil and Water Supervisor Jacob Peele provided the Board with the annual update from the Soil 
and Water Conservation Department. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation is in the meeting 
file labeled February 15, 2021. 

 
American Legion Lease 
Emergency Management Director Cord Palmer provided the Board with a draft lease between 
Chowan County and the Edward G. Bond Post 40 (American Legion) for the use of the parking 
lot for providing mass COVID vaccination clinics to the public. He stated that the lease has been 
reviewed by the state and other representatives and was found to be acceptable. He stated that 
FEMA monies could be used to reimburse the County for the rental expense.  The monthly rental 
amount is $2,000 and the lease term is for one year.  
 
Attorney Arizaga Womble stated that there are some items that will need clarification and she 
requested that if the Board approves the lease it will be under her final review and changes. 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to approve the lease as presented and to allow the attorney to have 
final review prior to signing the lease.  
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
Financial Items 

 
Budget Amendments 
BA2021-042 



 

*Preservation/Automation 847.74                     
*Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 282.58                   
*Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 282.58                   
*C/O - Auto / Pres 282.58                   

*State Special Funds 120.09                     
*State Special Expense 120.09                   
*KIDS & COPS 283.46                     
*KIDS & COPS Expense 283.46                   

*Donations - Chowan 735.00                     
*Donations - Gates 40.00                       
*Donations - Perquimans 320.00                     
*Donations - Other 1,600.00                 
*Donation - Expense 2,695.00               
*Adoption - Chowan 180.00                     
*Adoption - Gates 160.00                     
*Adoption - Other 100.00                     
*Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 440.00                   

*Recreation Special Events 100.00                     
*Recreation Special Events 100.00                   

*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                       
*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                     
*Reg Fees - Trips 270.00                     
*TRIPS - Senior Citizens 270.00                   
*Registration Fees Activities 109.00                     
*Activities - Dept. Supplies 109.00                   
*Healthways 276.00                     
*Healthways 276.00                   

*Donations - Rescue Squad 100.00                     
*Donations - Rescue Squad 100.00                   

Balanced 5,266.29                 5,266.29               

Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2021 78,760.58               

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00

Sheriff's Office
11-3431-233-00
11-4317-441-00
11-3431-243-00
11-4317-443-00

Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00
11-3438-894-01
11-3438-894-02
11-3438-894-03
11-4381-600-00
11-3438-895-00
11-3438-895-01
11-3438-895-03
11-4381-441-00

Senior Center

Recreation
11-3612-504-00
11-6132-453-00

11-3616-532-00
11-4268-904-01
11-3616-533-00
11-4268-312-00
11-3616-533-01
11-4268-299-01
11-3616-535-03
11-4268-352-02

EMS
60-3839-891-00
60-4370-499-00

To amend the 2021 budget to include Discretionary income received 
through January 2021.



BA2021-043  

 
 
BA2021-044  

 
BA2021-045 
 

TDA
Co-Op Advertising 1,910.00                 
Co-Op Advertising 1,910.00               

Balanced 1,910.00                 1,910.00               

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

51-3832-530-00
51-8150-370-01

To amend the 2021 budget for TDA to include Co-Op and Discretionary 
Income through January 2020.

AMH Removal Grant 9,021.87                 
AMH Removal Grant 9,021.87               

Balanced 9,021.87                 9,021.87               

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Planning
11-3347-360-01
11-4910-696-01

To amend the 2021 budget for Planning to include monies received for 
the AMH Removal Grant.



 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith provided the Board with this report noting that at future meetings 
she will provide this information to the full Board.  A copy of the report is in the meeting file 
labeled February 15, 2021. 

 
External Board/Committee Report 
Chair Kirby noted that Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards 
to which they have been appointed. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin noted the CIP Committee met. 
 
Chair Kirby noted the ECP Board met. 

 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard stated he did not have any updates. 
 
Timely and Important Matters 
Retreat 
Ms. Stallings noted that the Board retreat is scheduled for March 2, 2021. Please get the clerk 
any suggested retreat topics no later than Thursday, February 18th by 5pm, so that a retreat 
agenda may be planned. 

 
Closed Session 
Commissioner Evans moved that the Board go into closed session, in accordance with NCGS 
143-318 (11) (a) (3, 5 and 6) attorney client privilege, contract negotiations and personnel. Chair 
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

Albemarle Comm - Health Promotions 1,491.00                 
Albemarle Comm - Health Promotions 1,491.00               

Balanced 1,491.00                 1,491.00               

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Senior Center
11-3616-537-00
11-4268-601-00

To amend the 2021 budget for Senior Center to include monies 
received from Albemarle Commission for Health Promotions.



The minutes of the closed session are sealed.  
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Motion to amend agenda 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to amend the agenda to consider an EMS salary adjustment for 
two employees. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
EMS Salary Adjustment 
Commissioner Cummings moved to approve a salary adjustment for two EMS employees, 
Wendy Burge an increase of $2,000, new salary to be $37,801 and Heather Nash an increase of 
$413 new salary to be $34,105 both to become effective March 1, 2021. 

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
Adjourn 
Being no further business Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
 
 

_______________________________________  ______________________________ 

Bob Kirby, Chairman      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 


	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION


